
TOWN OF PATTERSON 
 

PLANNING BOARD MEETING 
September 1, 2011 

 
AGENDA & MINUTES 

 
Page # 

1) RCA Asphalt Plant Site Plan – Public 
Hearing 

2 – 4 Public Hearing opened and closed. 
Negative SEQRA Determination. 

    
2) Putnam County National Bank – Release of 

Bond 
4 Town Planner to send correspondence to owner. 

    
3) Other Business    
      a.     Boniello Site Plan 5 Town Planner to meet with owner. 
    

4) Minutes 5 & 11 June 30th, July 7th, July 28th and August 4th Approved. 
    
 Levine Fill Permit Discussion 5 – 11 Discussion of procedures to proceed with application. 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

michelle
Approved



 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

P.O. Box 470 
1142 Route 311 

Patterson, NY 12563 
 

Michelle Lailer 
Sarah Wagar 

Secretary 
 

Richard Williams 
Town Planner 

 
Telephone    (845) 878-6500 
FAX             (845) 878-2019 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 TOWN OF PATTERSON 
 PLANNING & ZONING OFFICE 

 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Lars Olenius ,Chairman  
Howard Buzzutto, Vice Chairman  

Mary Bodor 
Marianne Burdick  

Gerald Herbst 
 

PLANNING BOARD 
Shawn Rogan, Chairman 

Charles Cook, Vice Chairman 
Michael Montesano 
Thomas E. McNulty 

Ron Taylor 

 
Planning Board 

September 1, 2011 Meeting Minutes 
Held at the Patterson Town Hall 

1142 Route 311 
Patterson, NY 12563 

 
Present were: Chairman Rogan, Board Member Cook, Board Member Montesano, Board Member Taylor, 
Rich Williams, Town Planner, Andrew Fetherston of the Town Engineer’s office Maser Consulting, and 
Mr. Michael Liguori of the Town Attorney’s office Hogan & Rossi. 
 
Chairman Rogan called the meeting to order and led the Salute to the Flag. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
There was approximately 1 member of the audience. 
 
Michelle Lailer was the Secretary and transcribed the following minutes. 
 
 
1) RCA ASPHALT PLANT SITE PLAN – Public Hearing 
 
Mrs. Theresa Ryan of Insite Engineering was present to represent the application. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, Michelle can you please read the public hearing notice. 
 
The Secretary read the following legal notice into the record: 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the Town of Patterson Planning Board of a public hearing to be held 
on Thursday, September 1, 2011 at 7:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as may be heard, at the Patterson Town 
Hall, 1142 Route 311, Patterson, Putnam County, New York to consider an application entitled RCA 
Asphalt, LLC. Site Plan Application and Wetlands/Watercourse Permit Application to allow for the 
relocation of the driveway to the asphalt plan, a portion of which will intrude into the wetland buffer. 
The property is located at 65 Burdick Road, Patterson, New York.  All interested parties and citizens will 
be given an opportunity to be heard in respect to such application. 
 

michelle
Approved



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
September 1, 2011 Minutes Page 2 

 
Mrs. Ryan stated thank you Michelle, I have nothing more to add except I am going to point out where the 
existing driveway is and where the proposed one is. The existing driveway right now is at the end of 
Burdick Road and we are proposing one off of the private road that the quarry now uses. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated great, any questions from any of the numerous members of the audience. Seeing no 
questions… 
 
Board Member Montesano stated make a motion to close the public hearing. 
 
Board Member Cook seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asks for all in favor: 
 
  Board Member Taylor  - aye 
  Board Member McNulty - absent 
  Board Member Montesano - aye 
  Board Member Cook  - aye 
  Chairman Rogan  - aye 
 
The motion carried by a vote of 4 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, enough sufficient time has elapsed, right on this that we can do a SEQRA 
determination. 
 
Rich Williams stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated would anybody like to do that SEQRA determination. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated you have the cheat sheet. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated don’t look at me. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated you got the cheat sheet. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated might as well get use of it. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated SEQRA negative declaration… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yes sir. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated move that in the application of RCA Asphalt Plant Site Plan, oh sorry, you 
want me to start again… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated it’s okay, yes sure. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated here, move that in the application of RCA Asphalt Plant Site Plan, the 
Planning Board of the Town of Patterson finds that the proposed action being an unlisted action, will not 
have a significant impact on the environment and thereby issues a negative declaration of significance. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
September 1, 2011 Minutes Page 3 

 
Board Member Montesano seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asks for all in favor: 
 
  Board Member Taylor  - aye 
  Board Member McNulty - absent 
  Board Member Montesano - aye 
  Board Member Cook  - aye 
  Chairman Rogan  - aye 
 
The motion carried by a vote of 4 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, very good.  Anything from you gentlemen tonight… 
 
Rich Williams stated no, that’s it. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated how about you Theresa, do you have power back at your house. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated no. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated you want to borrow my gerbil. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated your gerbil… 
 
Board Member Montesano stated he’s running on the wheel… 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated are you done with it. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated he’s on the wheel. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so procedurally… 
 
Rich Williams stated procedurally next meeting I’ll have a resolution for you to wrap this up… 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated not tonight… 
 
Rich Williams stated I was, it was suggested to me that we should not have resolutions ready the night of 
the public hearing… 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated oh. 
 
Rich Williams stated so I have stopped doing that practice. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated it got us pretty good on Ice Pond Subdivision… 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
September 1, 2011 Minutes Page 4 

 
Mrs. Ryan stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we did a resolution right after the public hearing and that certainly gives the 
implication that the public comment wasn’t considered. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated I see. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so considering the volume of public comment we got tonight we would be 
remiss… 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated we were overwhelmed. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated and you made the changes on the plan, the few changes, do we have a… 
 
Rich Williams stated everything is done at this point. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated okay. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated no other comments, okay, thank you very much. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated thank you very much. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated see you next month. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I hope you get your power, before you get home. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated yeah, they already said maybe next week. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated do you have a generator… 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated that’s what I get for living in the boonies, yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated all right. 
 
Mrs. Ryan stated thank you for coming out for this special event tonight. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated absolutely wouldn’t miss it for the world, and good evening folks… 
 
 
2) PUTNAM COUNTY NATIONAL BANK – Release of Bond 
 
Chairman Rogan stated Putnam County National Bank we were waiting for a response. 
 
Rich Williams stated you had asked me to draft a second letter to them, it’s sitting in the office for your 
review and signature if you’re okay with it, if not we’ll revise it. 
 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
September 1, 2011 Minutes Page 5 

 
3) OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 a. Boniello Site Plan 
 
Chairman Rogan stated great and on Boniello we were going to suggest that you gentlemen sit down and 
iron it out. 
 
Rich Williams stated I’ve talked with Mr. Boniello and with the past hurricane he hasn’t had time to come 
in so we have had discussions… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated with everything going on, I think everyone is backed up a good week on what they 
said they wanted to do, so, understandable. 
 
Rich Williams stated yes. 
 
 
4) MINUTES 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we have minutes for… 
 
Board Member Taylor I’ve got some other business… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, I’m sorry go ahead. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated it’s on Levine… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yes. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated I just have a statement I’d like to read. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated a statement, oh. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated too bad Ted’s not here tonight because it’s directed at him.  While we may 
sympathize with the ECI’s efforts to have the State DEC do its job, nevertheless, after a year of inaction by 
the State, it seems clear the political reality is that State officials have made a decision that enforcement of 
environmental laws is not a high budget priority. I emphasize the work decisions for budget and 
appropriations embody actual policy, no matter what contrary pronouncements at to what policy 
supposedly is may be made.  As a local Town Planning Board we must decide what our response to 
political reality and lapse of State enforcement will be.  I believe we should openly discuss and arrive at a 
decision, legal counsel should weigh in on liability implications of such an explicit decision, especially if 
we decide to continue to do nothing.  That is directed at you.  We do continue to pursue measures directed 
at the State DEC, do we continue to pursue measures of the State DEC to undertake their proper role, by 
doing so we albeit unconsciously are tacitly endorsing the State’s policy of lax enforcement of 
environmental laws, for we are in reality, just like them doing nothing.  If this fill is a health hazard as our 
experts advise us it is, if it weren’t we wouldn’t be in this quandary to begin with, then by doing nothing we 
are allowing the hazard to continue to exist and do its damage unabated.  What liability do we therefore 
incur. If we are concerned about this health risk, then we need to take some action that will result in a 
remediation.  Therefore, I proposed we formulate a resolutions to deny the fill permit of Mr. Levine and a 
recommendation to the Building Department that they being enforcement proceedings against the 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
September 1, 2011 Minutes Page 6 

 
landowner/violator and the neighboring landowner on whose land the violator also dumped hazardous fill, 
to have the hazardous fill removed and the land restored to its previous condition.  Some stipulations we 
should consider, the landowner has proposed removing the fill.  At the present state of our knowledge, we 
believe that removal of the fill is the best course of action.  Two, as costs of removing hazardous fill in 
compliance with all Federal, State and Local laws may be expensive we suggest that Mr. Levine have his 
engineer re-evaluate and revise as necessary the removal plans in light of the soil test results.  Three, we 
advise that the applicant seek counsel to determine if any of the financial burden of the removal of the 
hazardous fill could be recovered from the carters who dumped the contaminated fill in the first place.  
Four, although we understand the financial burden such hazardous fill removal may be, the application 
created the situation through his willful and negligent disregard of Local, State and Federal laws.  There are 
consequences for ones’ actions.  The financial consequences to the property are necessarily a separate issue 
with which the Town may offer some advice to Mr. Levine in finding assistance but they are beyond on the 
scope of the powers of this Board.  Achieving clean up of the property may prove to be a difficult 
undertaking because of the expense but the Board’s inaction simply delays and does not help that 
undertaking. Five, the fill is a hazard to the property and perhaps to neighboring properties and to their 
occupants, remedial action actions needs to be taken.  There are consequences for inaction as well, there are 
always plenty reasons for not doing, what the Board is faced with is a situation that requires actions, 
therefore we must made a decision as to what to do and stop procrastinating.  Now if there are going to be 
30 days between now and the next meeting, perhaps we could send out a notice to the DEC that we are 
going to be taking action with or without their input and the Building Department is unfortunately going to 
be left with the problem of working out the removal plan with the DEC or the Town Board perhaps should 
make a decision whether to proceed with the DEC approval or without it but I think we’ve spent enough 
time on this issue, I think we need to take some action.  I’ll give you a copy of this statement… 
 
The Secretary stated thank you. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated that is all I have to say on that. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated comment, discussion. 
 
Board Member Cook stated I don’t think you can argue with the fact that DEC has taken an 
overwhelmingly long time to respond and even when they did and met with Rich and whoever else there 
from the County that we are still waiting for a report months later.  I think we should take some action, I 
think we should tie into the thoughts that Ron has expressed with back to the letter from Terri Hahn, what 
she was proposing to be done and with input from Rich and Andrew and Ted and move out. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated let me through this out, why don’t we do the following, number one, let’s ask our 
legal counsel to weigh in, in writing, I don’t want to put you on the spot, I wouldn’t do that to you because 
I know you are only becoming familiar with the situation but in terms of your advice on either an 
appropriate action or the implication of not acting as Ron had suggested while we’re waiting for DEC, he’s 
right, there is a known hazard that is leaching into the soil and we, none of know what the implications long 
term will be from that.  Secondly, why don’t we just write a quick memo to the Town Board advising them 
of what we are being, what we’re dealing with right now and how we are in a quandary as to how to best 
proceed, we can’t do any action I think without having at least them on board of knowing what’s going on 
because that has again, implications to the Town has a whole and third, maybe Rich, you and Andrew can 
discuss and make a recommendation to the Board as to what an appropriate remediation plan might look 
like and I don’t mean comprehensive at this point but a general idea, how you think we should best 
proceed, not in terms of the action of the Board but in terms for the action for the site, see if we can… 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
September 1, 2011 Minutes Page 7 

 
Rich Williams stated whether we take the fill off or cap, cap it or rather take it off… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah, what would be the appropriate action, you said Andrew many times, you 
have people within your firm that specialize in this sort of thing… 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and so I think maybe we want to not pull in too much of Andrew’s firm until we 
know the Town, maybe do the Town Board first so that we’re not incurring additional costs that they are 
going to think we’re crazy for doing, just to you know, not get anybody in hot water… 
 
Rich Williams stated right. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated just so the Board is aware… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated the Planning Board isn’t an enforcement arm of the Town… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated so you can’t do this on your own… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated you have to get the Town Board to authorize the consultants for the Town to do that… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated well I’m not saying to… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated I can advise you guys… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated sure. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated and tell you what to do, there is a violation, I am reading Rich’s note to me from Rich 
did a summary of all the matters that were out there before we came on board and from that note there is a 
Notice of Violation that was issued from the Building Department, I don’t know if an Appearance Ticket 
was issued though… 
 
Rich Williams stated no. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated okay, so then whatever goes to the Town Board from the Planning Board if there is a, 
what I believe you have the authority to do is to make a recommendation to the Town Board to say, hey 
this is a very serious issue, if you are not aware of this, you need to be aware of it, we’ve been dealing with 
it because part of the remedy has been to come to the Planning Board but these guys come to that Planning 
Board and it’s been a year since anything has happened… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Mr. Liguori stated enough corresponding… 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
September 1, 2011 Minutes Page 8 

 
 
Chairman Rogan stated in fairness Mike, I don’t hold, I hold Mr. Levine culpable from the standpoint that 
the fill is now on his property but for a year the guy is not at fault for not resolving this, its all on us, at this 
point… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated yes. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated us, I say the Town and the DEC because we, he was saying, I’ll get somebody in 
and we’ll get rid of this stuff, no, no, we need to know, we need to include the DEC, we’ve kind of said just 
wait and we’re, he’s in the wings waiting for us to move forward with telling him what we want him to do, 
so its not that he has been inactive, he has not had any guidance as to which way to proceed… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so for the last year at least, I don’t hold that guy at fault at all… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated okay. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated his only problem was getting the fill on his site, from there forward, he really 
hasn’t done anything wrong… 
 
Rich Williams stated and if I could jump in here, really the Planning Board has the authority to approve it 
or deny it… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated without a doubt. 
 
Rich Williams stated and they can approve it with conditions… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated right. 
 
Rich Williams stated right but those are the two steps really the Planning Board has, after that if they deny 
it then it’s up to the Building Department to issue a violation or an Appearance Ticket and go to court, you 
know and then it’s up to Mr. Levine to decide what he’s going to do with it. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so then would a more appropriate action at this time be to advise the Town Board 
of where we stand that we are going to move forward because of the inaction of the DEC, we plan to move 
forward with their consent to formulate or to work with Terri Hahn or whoever Mr. Levine’s… 
 
Board Member Cook stated consultant. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated consultants are, thank you and work towards approving some kind of an action on 
this… 
 
Rich Williams stated yes… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated I mean that you know, yeah… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated just a question, yeah, I agree with you on that, I guess the question I have is what is 
taking so long about the soil test, who is doing the soil… 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
September 1, 2011 Minutes Page 9 

 
 
Chairman Rogan stated no the soil test, we did the soil test and sent the DEC the results… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated oh okay. 
 
Rich Williams stated and that, a little bit of history on this, maybe we can take this outside at this point… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Rich Williams stated I can tell Mike the history of this… 
 
Mr. Liguori stated yeah, nobody is going to want to sit… 
 
Rich Williams stated yeah… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated okay, great. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated what I am suggesting is we have the option simply to deny the fill permit and 
then it goes back to the Building Department to deal with the problem of formulating plans and approving 
plans and all that, is that in our jurisdiction to even do that. 
 
Rich Williams stated no, you deny it then essentially he has to remove the fill and then the Building 
Department through its enforcement authority is then going to work out the details about (inaudible). 
 
Mr. Liguori stated right, right. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated so maybe we should ask the Building Department whether they want us to 
formulate the plan… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated or we just deny it and send it back to them. 
 
Rich Williams stated well they are going to do the same thing you’re doing, they are going to ask Andrew, 
they are going to ask. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated I think we should just deny it and send it off. 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated I just wonder, your interests Ron from what you just read was expeditious… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated yes. 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated let’s go, get expediting this… 
 
Board Member Cook stated I’m okay with the minutes. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
September 1, 2011 Minutes Page 10 

 
Andrew Fetherston stated what about if you put the onus on Mr. Levine and his consultant to come up with 
a plan and we do as we do with anything that comes before you, we just review it… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated well we received an initial plan but that was prior to the testing… 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated that’s what I mean… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated so maybe a modified plan now based on the testing. 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated (inaudible) that’s right. 
 
Rich Williams stated and you had asked me to get back to him and make sure that he talked to his 
consultant about the testing and tell him he needed to revise the plan, now he hasn’t you know had her 
involved in this in a very long time… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated right. 
 
Rich Williams stated due to financial issues… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated well maybe… 
 
Rich Williams stated that was the other step in all this. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated possibly a phone call or correspondence to Mr. Levine to say look you know, 
explain the situation we’ve been waiting for some response from the DEC, we haven’t been getting any and 
we are really concerned, can you move forward with having your consultant address a remediation plan 
based on the new findings, based on the soil analysis that showed the contaminants.  In the interim what I 
would like to do is have someone who specializes in this sort of thing to say hey, if I had soil that had this 
in it, what would I… 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated on a similar site, on a similar site, this is the action we would do… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated exactly. 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated understood, okay… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and I think that would be valuable. 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated not speaking specifically. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated allows us to, we can notify the Town Board of what we’re dealing with… 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated give the Board some… 
 
Chairman Rogan stated yeah because I agree… 
 
Andrew Fetherston stated (inaudible)… 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
September 1, 2011 Minutes Page 11 

 
Chairman Rogan stated you’re absolutely right, while we are waiting and we’re being patient, the DEC is 
not, has not been and I understand that everybody has their fiscal budget issues going on but the bottom 
line is this is our Town… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated exactly. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated and we do need to be proactive and use a little bit of home rule here and I think we 
all know there is going to be remediation that is going to have to happen, now to what extent that remains 
to be determined and again dealing with the other property owner that is what we’re we’ll have to rely on 
legal counsel for the way to proceed on that, that will have to, obviously be through a notice of violation of 
some sort but okay, good discussion, thank you for bringing it up, I’m sorry I didn’t ask during under Other 
Business, we can always, I never feel like we’ve moved passed something so… 
 
Board Member Taylor stated that’s all right, right. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated on minutes we have June 30th, July 7th, July 28th and August 4th, any revisions. 
 
Board Member Taylor stated I have one change on August 4th, page 19, the 5th line, to replace cure with 
sure in Shawn’s remarks.  She has you saying you cure something when you meant sure. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated we cure lots of things but thank you for that. 
 
The Secretary stated thank you. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated motion to approve those minutes with that one modification to August 4th, so 
moved, can I have a second. 
 
Board Member Montesano seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Rogan asks for all in favor: 
 
  Board Member Taylor  - aye 
  Board Member McNulty - absent 
  Board Member Montesano - aye 
  Board Member Cook  - aye 
  Chairman Rogan  - aye 
 
The motion carried by a vote of 4 to 0. 
 
Chairman Rogan stated anything from anyone else. 
 
Rich Williams stated nope. 
 
Board Member Montesano stated motion to adjourn. 
 
Chairman Rogan seconded the motion. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:19 p.m. 


	September 1, 2011 Agenda.pdf
	September 1, 2011 Minutes.pdf



